## **LLANHARAN COMMUNITY COUNCIL**

Minutes of the meeting of the Human Resources Committee held by remote attendance at 7.00pm on Wednesday 12<sup>th</sup> December 2023

The meeting was held in accordance with:

The Local Government and Elections (Wales) Act 2021

The following resolution applies to meetings of the HR committee: By virtue of the Public Bodies (Admission to Meetings) Act 1960, the press and public are excluded from discussion of all items of business on the basis that disclosure thereof would be prejudicial to the public interest by reason of the confidential nature of the business to be transacted

#### **Present:**

**Councillors:** Rhys Jenkins (Chair), Andrea James, Robert Lewis-Watkins, Janine Turner, David Evans.

Clerk to the Council: Leigh Smith

Apologies: None.

Absent: None.

HR2023/014 Welcome and Apologies

The Chair welcomed all attendees.

HR2023/015 Disclosures of Interests None.

HR2023/016 Minutes of HR committee meeting held 6th July 2023

#### RESOLVED

To approve the minutes of the HR committee meeting held on 6<sup>th</sup> July 2023 as a true and accurate record.

HR2023/017 Matters arising from the minutes. None.

HR2023/018 Minutes of HR committee meeting held 11th October 2023

#### **RESOLVED**

To approve the minutes of the HR committee meeting held on 11<sup>th</sup> October 2023

as a true and accurate record.

HR2023/019 Matters arising from the minutes.

None.

HR2023/020 Course of action with regards to an employment matter affecting an employee of the council.

#### **RESOLVED**

For the Officer's to carry out steps 1-3 as outlined in the confidential paper presented to Council and for a formal 'medical capability hearing' to be arranged with Cllr Jenkins attending as a minute taker and for a further meeting of the HR Committee to be arranged in order to consider the outcomes of that meeting which will make recommendations to Full Council.

HR2023/021 Feasibility and details of employing a part time project officer for the financial year 2024/25 and beyond.

#### **RECOMMENDED**

To defer the decision until more data is available and/or the Committee has had further time to consider the details with a view to potentially adding to the budget for 2025/26.

#### HR2023/022 HR Policies

#### RECOMMENDED

To adopt the following policies as presented as the formal policies of the Council

Appendix 3 – Draft disciplinary policy & procedure V2.

Appendix 4 – Draft equality & diversity policy V2.

Appendix 5 – Draft grievance policy and procedure V2.

Appendix 6 – Draft sickness & absence policy & procedure V2.

# HR2023/023 Urgent information or suggestions for future agendas None

There being no further business the meeting closed at 7.35pm

Date of next meeting: TBD

Councillor Rhys Jenkins, Chair of the HR Committee



### LLANHARAN COMMUNITY COUNCIL

Minutes of the meeting of the Human Resources Committee held by remote attendance at 7.00pm on Tuesday 6<sup>th</sup> July 2022

The meeting was held in accordance with:

The Local Government and Elections (Wales) Act 2021

The following resolution applies to meetings of the HR committee:

By virtue of the Public Bodies (Admission to Meetings) Act 1960, the press and public are excluded from discussion of all items of business on the basis that disclosure thereof would be prejudicial to the public interest by reason of the confidential nature of the business to be transacted

#### **Present:**

Councillors: Rhys Jenkins, David Evans, Janine turner, Robert Lewis-

Watkin.

Clerk to the Council: Leigh Smith

**Apologies:** Andrea James

**Absent:** None

#### HR2023/001 Welcome and Apologies

The Chair welcomed all attendees.

#### RESOLVED

Cllr Andrea James proffered a reason with their apologies, the reason was accepted as a valid reason for absence.



#### HR2023/002 Disclosures of Interests

None.

HR2023/003 To approve as a true and accurate record the minutes of the HR committee meeting held remotely on 13<sup>th</sup> June 2023 at 7pm.

#### RESOLVED

This item was deferred to a future meeting of the Committee.

HR2023/004 Matters arising from the minutes.

#### **RESOLVED**

This item was deferred to a future meeting of the Committee.

### HR2023/005 Appointment of 'Senior Grounds-person'

#### **RESOLVED**

Under authority previously delegated by full council, to appoint Paul Beach as 'Senior Grounds-person'. Pay set to SCP8 as previously resolved by Council.

## HR2023/006 Urgent matters

None

There being no further business the meeting closed at 8.00pm

Date of next meeting: 12th December 2023

Councillor Rhys Jenkins, Chair of the HR Committee

## **LLANHARAN COMMUNITY COUNCIL**

Minutes of the meeting of the Human Resources Committee held by remote attendance at 7.00pm on Tuesday 11<sup>th</sup> October 2023

The meeting was held in accordance with:

The Local Government and Elections (Wales) Act 2021

The following resolution applies to meetings of the HR committee: By virtue of the Public Bodies (Admission to Meetings) Act 1960, the press and public are excluded from discussion of all items of business on the basis that disclosure thereof would be prejudicial to the public interest by reason of the confidential nature of the business to be transacted

**Present:** 

Councillors: Rhys Jenkins (Chair), Andrea James, Janine Turner

Clerk to the Council: Leigh Smith

**Apologies:** David Evans

Absent: Robert Lewis-Watkin JP

HR2023/007 Welcome and Apologies

The Chair welcomed all attendees.

#### **RESOLVED**

Cllr David Evans proffered a reason with their apologies, the reason was accepted as a valid reason for absence.

## HR2023/008 Disclosures of Interests

None.

HR2023/009 To approve as a true and accurate record the minutes of the HR committee meeting held remotely on 6<sup>th</sup> July 2023 at 7pm.

#### RESOLVED

This item was deferred to a future meeting of the Committee.

HR2023/010 Matters arising from the minutes.

N/A

# HR2023/011 Course of action with regards to an employment matter affecting an employee of the council.

#### **RESOLVED**

To obtain professional advice regarding a staffing matter and to authorise the Clerk to spend up to £288 with the organisation specified in the confidential paper presented to the Committee. Authority to act in this regard previously having been delegated to the committee.

#### HR2023/012 HR Policies

#### **RESOLVED**

To defer this matter to a future meeting of council to allow further work to be carried out.

## HR2023/013 Urgent matters

None

There being no further business the meeting closed at 8.00pm

Date of next meeting: TBD

Councillor Rhys Jenkins, Chair of the HR Committee

#### Appendix 2a

## <u>Feasibility and details of employing a part time project officer for the financial</u> year 2024/25 and beyond.

#### Factors to consider:

Workload/Role profile

Workload would in part be dependent on the role profile.

### Disregarding job title, options to consider could include:

- 1. Role to manage all aspects of the Council's CIL spend, CIL Committee and related work.
- 2. Role to manage the above plus other tasks as delegated by the Clerk (to avoid the possibility of dead time).

There is currently no data to quantify the split of workload undertaken.

The Clerk is currently undertaking a time management exercise to track and quantify the work split between different facets of the workload using a popular time management app. Data from this exercise will only really become meaningful after a significant period of time.

Hours of work

The hours of work demand will be largely dependent on the workload and budgetary considerations.

Salary scale

The salary of the Clerk is currently set at SPC27

The salary of the Responsible financial Officer/Deputy Clerk is currently set at SPC25

The 2023-24 NALC Pay rates:

SCP	Full time	Hourly rate				
13	£26,873	£13.97	LC1 (13-17)			
14	£27,334	£14.21	(above substantive range)			
15	£27,803	£14.45				
16	£28,282	£14.70				
17	£28,770	£14.95				
18	£29,269	£15.21	LC2 (18-23)			
19	£29,777	£15.48	(below substantive range)			
20	£30,296	£15.75				
21	£30,825	£16.02				
22	£31,364	£16.30				
23	£32,076	£16.67				
24	£33,024	£17.16	LC2 (24-28)			
25	£33,945	£17.64	(substantive benchmark range)			
26	£34,834	£18.10				
27	£35,745	£18.58				
28	£36,648	£19.05				

Note: As a rule of thumb, the on-cost (further employer costs for employer pension contribution and employer NI contribution) to the Council would be approx. 33% of the gross salary.

### Type of contract

## Options to consider

Temporary contract.

Permanent contract

Fixed term contract.

### • Timing and budgetary conditions

Once a salary level is decided upon, the amount would need to be factored into the budget for that financial year.

The Audit committee is scheduled to consider the Councils draft budget for 2024/25 at its next scheduled meeting on 16<sup>th</sup> January 2023.

Full Council is scheduled to consider the draft budget on 18<sup>th</sup> January 2024 when it will set its precept for 2024/25.

Note that if the proposal is added to the budget and accepted, it will affect the precept regardless of whether the post is filled or not as the precept calculations and therefore Council tax settings are based on the Council's budget for the following year.

Note: As a rule of thumb, the on-cost (further employer costs for employer pension contribution and employer NI contribution) to the Council would be approx. 33% of the gross salary.

For example, if a role attracted a rate of SCP20 for 20 hours a week this would equate to: a pro rata gross salary of £16,376. With added oncosts this would be a gross cost to the Council of circa £21,780.

This would equate to an increase of £6.34 on the Community Council (Band D) Council tax rate, giving a tax rate of £87.18, constituting an 8% increase on last year's figure of £79.17 excepting all other factors.<sup>1</sup>

#### Options to consider

- To develop a proposal for the audit committee to consider on 16<sup>th</sup> January 2024 and Full council on 18<sup>th</sup> January 2024. (Further HR Committee meetings may be necessary)
- To develop a proposal to be considered and add additional meetings of the Audit Committee and /or Council in order to consider the matter.
- Postponing the decision until more data is available and/or the Committee has had further time to consider the details and adding to the budget for 2024/25, accepting the implications for the Council tax rate.
- Postponing the decision until more data is available and/or the Committee has had further time to consider the details and adding to the budget for 2025/26, accepting the implications for the Council tax rate.
- Some other option not listed here.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> These figures should be viewed in the context of the Council's overall budget and are included here only for indicative purposes.

#### Recruitment process

#### Options to consider

- Using established in house recruitment processes, using 'Indeed.com' online recruitment platforms and advertising locally on social media and notice boards (Recommended)
- Paying a fee to One Voice Wales or an independent recruitment agency to manage the process.
- Other factors

#### Next steps

The Officers of the Council await instruction from the Committee. Any recommendations of this committee regarding finance or budgeting will be presented to the Audit Committee for consideration in the setting of the 2024/25 budget.



## Llanharan Community Council – Disciplinary Policy & Procedure.

#### Introduction

1 This policy is based on the NACL template and complies with the 2015 ACAS Code of Practice

(<u>http://www.acas.org.uk/index.aspx?articleid=2174</u>). It also takes account of the ACAS guide on discipline and grievances at work.

https://www.acas.org.uk/media/1043/Discipline-and-grievances-at-work-The-Acas-guide/pdf/DG Guide Feb 2019.pdf

The policy is designed to help Council employees improve unsatisfactory conduct and performance in their job. Wherever possible, the Council will try to resolve its concerns about employees' behaviour informally, without starting the formal procedure set out below.

- The policy will be applied fairly, consistently and in accordance with the Equality Act 2010.
- 3 This policy confirms:
  - informal coaching and supervision will be considered, where appropriate, to improve conduct and / or attendance
  - the Council will fully investigate the facts of each case
  - the Council recognises that misconduct and unsatisfactory work performance are
    different issues. The disciplinary policy will also apply to work performance issues
    to ensure that all alleged instances of employees' underperformance are dealt with
    fairly and in a way that is consistent with required standards. However, the
    disciplinary policy will only be used when performance management proves
    ineffective. For more information see ACAS "Performance Management" at
    https://www.acas.org.uk/index.aspx?articleid=6608
  - employees will be informed in writing about the nature of the complaint against them and given the opportunity to state their case
  - employees will be provided, where appropriate, with written copies of evidence and relevant witness statements in advance of a disciplinary hearing
  - employees may be accompanied or represented by a companion a workplace colleague, a trade union representative or a trade union official at any investigatory, disciplinary or appeal meeting. The companion is permitted to address such meetings, to put the employee's case and confer with the employee. The companion cannot answer questions put to the employee, address the meeting against the employee's wishes or prevent the employee from explaining his/her case

- the Council will give employees reasonable notice of any meetings in this
  procedure. Employee must make all reasonable efforts to attend. Failure to attend
  any meeting may result in it going ahead and a decision being taken. An employee
  who does not attend a meeting will be given the opportunity to be represented and
  to make written submissions
- if the employee's companion is not available for the proposed date of the meeting, the employee can request a postponement and can propose an alternative date that is within five working days of the original meeting date unless it is unreasonable not to propose a later date
- any changes to specified time limits in the Council's procedure must be agreed by the employee and the Council
- information about an employee's disciplinary matter will be restricted to those involved in the disciplinary process. A record of the reason for disciplinary action and the action taken by the Council is confidential to the employee. The employee's disciplinary records will be held by the Council in accordance with the General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR)
- audio or video recordings of the proceedings at any stage of the disciplinary procedure are prohibited, unless agreed by all affected parties as a reasonable adjustment that takes account of an employee's medical condition
- employees have the right to appeal against any disciplinary decision. The appeal decision is final
- if an employee who is already subject to the Council's disciplinary procedure raises a grievance, the grievance will normally be heard after the completion of the disciplinary procedure
- disciplinary action taken by the Council can include a formal written warning, final written warning or dismissal
- this procedure may be implemented at any stage if the employee's alleged misconduct warrants this
- except for gross misconduct when an employee may be dismissed without notice, the Council will not dismiss an employee on the first occasion that it decides there has been misconduct
- if an employee is suspended following allegations of misconduct, it will be on full pay and only for such time as is necessary. Suspension is not a disciplinary sanction. The Council will write to the employee to confirm any period of suspension and the reasons for it,
- the Council may consider mediation at any stage of the disciplinary procedure where appropriate (for example where there have been communication breakdowns or allegations of bullying or harassment). Mediation is a dispute resolution process that requires the consent of affected parties

#### **Examples of misconduct**

- 4 Misconduct is employee behaviour that can lead to the employer taking disciplinary action. The following list contains some examples of misconduct: The list is not exhaustive and under certain circumstances may constitute gross misconduct.
  - unauthorised absence
  - poor timekeeping
  - misuse of the Council's resources and facilities including telephone, email and internet
  - inappropriate behaviour
  - refusal to follow reasonable instructions
  - breach of health and safety rules.
  - Conduct that may bring the Council into disrepute.

#### **Examples of gross misconduct**

- Gross misconduct is misconduct that is so serious that it is likely to lead to dismissal without notice. The following list contains some examples of gross misconduct: The list is not exhaustive
  - bullying, discrimination and harassment
  - incapacity at work because of alcohol or drugs
  - violent behaviour
  - fraud or theft
  - gross negligence
  - gross insubordination
  - serious breaches of council policies and procedures e.g. the Health and Safety Policy, Equality and Diversity Policy, Data Protection Policy and any policies regarding the use of information technology
  - serious and deliberate damage to property
  - use of the internet or email to access pornographic, obscene or offensive material
  - Use of Council assets (including vehicles) without authorisation.
  - disclosure of confidential information.
  - Potentially, failure to comply with a reasonable request.

#### Suspension

If allegations of gross misconduct or serious misconduct are made, the council may suspend the employee while further investigations are carried out. Suspension will be

- on full pay. Suspension does not imply any determination of guilt or innocence, as it is merely a measure to enable further investigation.
- While on suspension, the employee is required to be available during normal hours of work in the event that the council needs to make contact. The employee must not contact or attempt to contact or influence anyone connected with the investigation in any way or to discuss this matter with any other employee or councillor.
- 8 The employee must not attend work. The council will make arrangements for the employee to access any information or documents required to respond to any allegations.

#### **Examples of unsatisfactory work performance**

- 9 The following list contains some examples of unsatisfactory work performance: The list is not exhaustive.
  - inadequate application of management instructions/office procedures
  - inadequate IT skills
  - unsatisfactory management of staff
  - unsatisfactory communication skills

#### The Procedure

- 10 Preliminary enquiries. The council may make preliminary enquiries to establish the basic facts of what has happened in order to understand whether there may be a case to answer under the disciplinary procedure.
  - If the employee's manager believes there may be a disciplinary case to answer, the council may initiate a more detailed investigation undertaken to establish the facts of a situation or to establish the perspective of others who may have witnessed misconduct.
- Informal Procedures. Where minor concerns about conduct become apparent, it is the manager's responsibility to raise this with the employee and clarify the improvements required. A file note will be made and kept by the manager. The informal discussions are not part of the formal disciplinary procedure. If the conduct fails to improve, or if further matters of conduct become apparent, the manager may decide to formalise the discussions and invite the employee to a first stage disciplinary hearing.

#### **Disciplinary investigation**

A formal disciplinary investigation may sometimes be required to establish the facts and whether there is a disciplinary case to answer.

- If a formal disciplinary investigation is required, the Council's HR committee will appoint an Investigator who will be responsible for undertaking a fact-finding exercise to collect all relevant information. The Investigator will be independent and will normally be a councillor. If the HR committee considers that there are no councillors who are independent (for example, because they all have direct involvement in the allegations about the employee), it will appoint someone from outside the Council. The Investigator will be appointed as soon as possible after the allegations have been made. The HR committee will inform the Investigator of the terms of reference of the investigation. The terms of reference should specify:
  - the allegations or events that the investigation is required to examine
  - whether a recommendation is required
  - how the findings should be presented. For example, an investigator will often be required to present the findings in the form of a written report
  - who the findings should be reported to and who to contact for further direction if unexpected issues arise or advice is needed.
- The Investigator will be asked to submit their findings within 20 working days of appointment where possible. In cases of alleged unsatisfactory performance or of allegations of minor misconduct, the appointment of an investigator may not be necessary and the Council may decide to commence disciplinary proceedings at the next stage the disciplinary meeting (see paragraph 22).
- The HR committee will notify the employee in writing of the alleged misconduct and details of the person undertaking the investigation. The employee may be asked to meet an investigator as part of the disciplinary investigation. The employee will be given sufficient notice of the meeting with the Investigator so that he/she has reasonable time to prepare for it. The letter will explain the investigatory process and that the meeting is part of that process. The employee will be provided with a copy of the Council's disciplinary procedure. The Council will also inform the employee that when he/she meets with the Investigator, he/she will have the opportunity to comment on the allegations of misconduct.
- 16 Employees may be accompanied or represented by a workplace colleague, a trade union representative or a trade union official at any investigatory meeting. However the person accompanying is present to provide support only, they may not answer questions or otherwise participate other than where there are valid medical reasons and this is agreed by both parties prior to the meeting.
- 17 If there are other persons (e.g. employees, councillors, members of the public or the Council's contractors) who can provide relevant information, the Investigator should try to obtain it from them in advance of the meeting with the employee.

- The Investigator has no authority to take disciplinary action. His/her role is to establish the facts of the case as quickly as possible and prepare a report that recommends to the HR committee whether or not disciplinary action should be considered under the policy.
- The Investigator's report will contain his/her recommendations and the findings on which they were based. He/she will recommend either:
  - the employee has no case to answer and there should no further action under the Council's disciplinary procedure
  - the matter is not serious enough to justify further use of the disciplinary procedure and can be dealt with informally or
  - the employee has a case to answer and a formal hearing should be convened under the Council's disciplinary procedure.
- The Investigator will submit the report to the HR committee which will decide whether further action will be taken.
- If the Council decides that it will not take disciplinary action, it may consider whether mediation would be appropriate in the circumstances.

#### The disciplinary meeting

- If the HR committee decides that there is a case to answer, it will appoint a disciplinary panel of three councillors (the terms of which are set out in the annual meeting), to formally hear the allegations. The disciplinary panel will appoint a Chair from one of its members. The Investigator shall not sit on the sub-committee.
- No councillor with direct involvement or an interest in the matter shall be appointed to the disciplinary panel. The employee will be invited, in writing, to attend a disciplinary meeting. The sub–committee's letter will confirm the following:
  - the names of its Chair and other two members
  - details of the alleged misconduct, its possible consequences and the employee's statutory right to be accompanied at the meeting
  - a copy of the information provided to the disciplinary panel which may include the investigation report, supporting evidence and a copy of the Council's disciplinary procedure
  - the time and place for the meeting. The employee will be given reasonable notice of the hearing so that he /she has sufficient time to prepare for it
    - that witnesses may attend on the employee's and the Council's behalf and that both parties should inform each other of their witnesses' names at least two working days before the meeting
    - that the employee may be accompanied by a companion a workplace colleague, a trade union representative or a trade union official. Your companion

may take notes on your behalf, present your case, sum up your case or talk things over with you during the hearing (you may request reasonable breaks during the hearing).

The purpose of the disciplinary meeting hearing is for the allegations to be put to the employee and then for the employee to give their perspective. It will be conducted as follows:

- the Chair will introduce the members of the disciplinary panel to the employee and explain the arrangements for the hearing
- the Chair will set out the allegations and invite the Investigator to present the findings of the investigation report (if there has been a previous investigation)
- the Chair will invite the employee to present their account
- the employee (or the companion) will set out his/her case and present evidence (including any witnesses and/witness statements that have been signed and dated by the witness themselves)
- any member of the disciplinary panel and the employee (or the companion) may question the Investigator and any witness
- the employee (or companion) will have the opportunity to sum up
- The Chair will provide the employee with the disciplinary panel's decision with reasons, in writing, within five working days of the meeting. The Chair will also notify the employee of the right to appeal the decision.
- The disciplinary meeting may be adjourned to allow matters that were raised during the meeting to be further investigated by the disciplinary panel.

#### **Disciplinary action**

26 If the disciplinary panel decides that there should be disciplinary action, it may be any of the following:

First written warning

If the employee's conduct has fallen beneath acceptable standards, a first written warning will be issued. A first written warning will set out:

- the reason for the written warning, the improvement required (if appropriate) and the time period for improvement
- that further misconduct/failure to improve will result in more serious disciplinary action
- the employee's right of appeal

- that a note confirming the written warning will be placed on the employee's personnel file, that a copy will be provided to the employee and that the warning will remain in force for a specified period of time.
- A written warning will usually remain on the employees file for 6 months. However a warning may remain on file for an indefinite period depending on the nature of the offence. If a warning is to remain on file for longer than 6 months the employee will be informed of the period of time and the reason why.

#### Final written warning

If the offence is sufficiently serious, or if there is further misconduct or a failure to improve sufficiently during the currency of a prior warning, the employee will be given a final written warning. A final written warning will set out:

- the reason for the final written warning, the improvement required (if appropriate) and the time period for improvement
- that further misconduct/failure to improve will result in more serious disciplinary action up to and including dismissal
- the employee's right of appeal
- that a note confirming the final written warning will be placed on the employee's personnel file, that a copy will be provided to the employee and that the warning will remain in force for a specified period of time. A final written warning will usually remain on the employees file for 12 months. However a final written warning may remain on file for an indefinite period depending on the nature of the offence. If a warning is to remain on file for longer than 12 months the employee will be informed of the period of time and the reason why.

#### **Dismissal**

The Council may dismiss:

- for gross misconduct
- if there is no improvement within the specified time period, in the conduct which has been the subject of a final written warning
- if another instance of misconduct has occurred and a final written warning has already been issued and remains in force.
- The Council will consider very carefully a decision to dismiss. If an employee is dismissed, he/she will receive a written statement of the reasons for his/her dismissal, the date on which the employment will end and details of his/her right of appeal. If the disciplinary panel decides to take no disciplinary action, no record of the matter will be

retained on the employee's personnel file. Action taken as a result of the disciplinary meeting will remain in force unless it is modified as a result of an appeal.

#### The appeal

- An employee who is the subject of disciplinary action will be notified of the right of appeal. His/her written notice of appeal must be received by the Chair of the HR committee within five working days of the employee receiving written notice of the disciplinary action and must specify the grounds for appeal.
- 29 The grounds for appeal include;
  - a failure by the Council to follow its disciplinary policy
  - the disciplinary panel's disciplinary decision was not supported by the evidence
  - the disciplinary action was too severe in the circumstances of the case
  - new evidence has come to light since the disciplinary meeting.
- Where possible, the appeal will be heard by an appeals panel of three members of the council who have not previously been involved in the case subject to terms set out in the annual meeting. The Investigator may not sit on the appeal panel. The appeal panel will appoint a Chair from one of its members.
- The employee will be notified, in writing, within 10 working days of receipt of the notice of appeal of the time, date and place of the appeal meeting. The employee will be advised that he/she may be accompanied by a companion a workplace colleague, a trade union representative or a trade union official.
- 32 At the appeal meeting, the Chair will:
  - introduce the panel members to the employee
  - explain the purpose of the meeting, which is to hear the employee's reasons for appealing against the disciplinary decision
  - explain the action that the appeal panel may take.
- 33 The employee (or companion) will be asked to explain the grounds for appeal.
- The Chair will inform the employee that he/she will receive the decision and the panel's reasons, in writing, usually within five working days of the appeal hearing.
- The appeal panel may decide to uphold the disciplinary decision of the disciplinary panel, substitute a less serious sanction or decide that no disciplinary action is necessary. If it decides to take no disciplinary action, no record of the matter will be retained on the employee's personnel file.
- If an appeal against dismissal is upheld, the employee will be paid in full for the period from the date of dismissal and continuity of service will be preserved.

37

The appeal panel's decision is final.



## Llanharan Community Council – Equality and Diversity Policy

Our commitment	2
The law	2
Types of unlawful discrimination	2
Equal opportunities in employment	3
Dignity at work	4
People not employed by the council	4
Training	4
Your responsibilities	4
Grievances	5
Monitoring and review	5

#### **Our commitment**

The council is committed to providing equal opportunities in employment and to avoiding unlawful discrimination.

This policy is intended to assist the council to put this commitment into practice. Compliance with this policy should also ensure that employees do not commit unlawful acts of discrimination.

Striving to ensure that the work environment is free of harassment and bullying and that everyone is treated with dignity and respect is an important aspect of ensuring equal opportunities in employment.

#### The law

It is unlawful to discriminate directly or indirectly in recruitment or employment because of age, disability, sex, gender reassignment, pregnancy, maternity, race (which includes colour, nationality, caste and ethnic or national origins), sexual orientation, religion or belief, or because someone is married or in a civil partnership. These are known as "protected characteristics".

Discrimination after employment may also be unlawful, e.g. refusing to give a reference for a reason related to one of the protected characteristics.

The council will not discriminate against or harass a member of the public in the provision of services or goods. It is unlawful to fail to make reasonable adjustments to overcome barriers to using services caused by disability. The duty to make reasonable adjustments includes the removal, adaptation or alteration of physical features, if the physical features make it impossible or unreasonably difficult for disabled people to make use of services. In addition, service providers have an obligation to think ahead and address any barriers that may impede disabled people from accessing a service.

#### Types of unlawful discrimination

<u>Direct discrimination</u> is where a person is treated less favourably than another because of a protected characteristic.

In limited circumstances, employers can directly discriminate against an individual for a reason related to any of the protected characteristics where there is an occupational requirement. The occupational requirement must be crucial to the post and a proportionate means of achieving a legitimate aim.

<u>Indirect discrimination</u> is where a provision, criterion or practice is applied that is discriminatory in relation to individuals who have a relevant protected characteristic such that it would be to the detriment of people who share that protected characteristic compared with people who do not, and it cannot be shown to be a proportionate means of achieving a legitimate aim.

<u>Harassment</u> is where there is unwanted conduct, related to one of the protected characteristics (other than marriage and civil partnership, and pregnancy and maternity) that has the purpose or effect of violating a person's dignity; or creating an intimidating, hostile, degrading, humiliating or offensive environment. It does not matter whether or not this effect was intended by the person responsible for the conduct.

<u>Associative discrimination</u> is where an individual is directly discriminated against or harassed for association with another individual who has a protected characteristic.

<u>Perceptive discrimination</u> is where an individual is directly discriminated against or harassed based on a perception that he/she has a particular protected characteristic when he/she does not, in fact, have that protected characteristic.

<u>Third-party harassment</u> occurs where an employee is harassed and the harassment is related to a protected characteristic, by third parties.

<u>Victimisation</u> occurs where an employee is subjected to a detriment, such as being denied a training opportunity or a promotion because he/she made or supported a complaint or raised a grievance under the Equality Act 2010, or because he/she is suspected of doing so. However, an employee is not protected from victimisation if he/she acted maliciously or made or supported an untrue complaint.

Failure to make reasonable adjustments is where a physical feature or a provision, criterion or practice puts a disabled person at a substantial disadvantage compared with someone who does not have that protected characteristic and the employer has failed to make reasonable adjustments to enable the disabled person to overcome the disadvantage.

#### Equal opportunities in employment

The council will avoid unlawful discrimination in all aspects of employment including recruitment, promotion, opportunities for training, pay and benefits, discipline and selection for redundancy.

#### Recruitment

Person and job specifications will be limited to those requirements that are necessary for the effective performance of the job. Candidates for employment or promotion will be assessed objectively against the requirements for the job, taking account of any reasonable adjustments that may be required for candidates with a disability. Disability and personal or home commitments will not form the basis of employment decisions except where necessary.

#### Working practices

The council will consider any possible indirectly discriminatory effect of its standard working practices, including the number of hours to be worked, the times at which these are to be worked and the place at which work is to be done, when considering requests for variations to these standard working practices and will refuse such requests only if the council considers it has good reasons, unrelated to any protected characteristic, for doing so. The council will comply with its obligations in relation to statutory requests for contract variations.

The council will also make reasonable adjustments to its standard working practices to overcome barriers caused by disability.

#### Equal opportunities monitoring

The council will monitor the ethnic, gender and age composition of the existing workforce and of applicants for jobs (including promotion), and the number of people with disabilities within these groups, and will consider and take any appropriate action to address any problems that may be identified as a result of the monitoring process.

The council treats personal data collected for reviewing equality and diversity in accordance with the data protection policy. Information about how data is used and the basis for processing is provided in the council's privacy notices.

#### Dignity at work

The council has a separate dignity at work policy concerning issues of bullying and harassment on any ground, and how complaints of this type will be dealt with.

#### People not employed by the council

The council will not discriminate unlawfully against those using or seeking to use the services provided by the council.

You should report any bullying or harassment by suppliers, visitors or others to the council who will take appropriate action.

#### **Training**

The council will endeavour to provide training on equal opportunities to those likely to be involved in recruitment or other decision making where equal opportunities issues are likely to arise.

The council will endeavour to raise awareness of equal opportunities to all staff engaged to work at the council to help them understand their rights and responsibilities under the dignity at work policy and what they can do to help create a working environment free of bullying and harassment.

#### Your responsibilities

Every employee is required to assist the council to meet its commitment to provide equal opportunities in employment and avoid unlawful discrimination. Employees can be held personally liable as well as, or instead of, the council for any act of unlawful discrimination. Employees who commit serious acts of harassment may be guilty of a criminal offence.

Acts of discrimination, harassment, bullying or victimisation against employees or customers are disciplinary offences and will be dealt with under the council's disciplinary procedure. Discrimination, harassment, bullying or victimisation may constitute gross misconduct and could lead to dismissal without notice.

#### **Grievances**

If you consider that you may have been unlawfully discriminated against, you should use the council's grievance procedure to make a complaint. If your complaint involves bullying or harassment, the grievance procedure is modified as set out in the bullying and harassment policy.

The council will take any complaint seriously and will seek to resolve any grievance that it upholds. You will not be penalised for raising a grievance, even if your grievance is not upheld, unless your complaint is both untrue and made in bad faith.

#### Monitoring and review

This policy will be monitored periodically by the council to judge its effectiveness and will be updated in accordance with changes in the law. [In particular, the council will monitor the ethnic and gender composition of the existing workforce and of applicants for jobs (including promotion), and the number of people with disabilities within these groups, and will review its equal opportunities policy in accordance with the results shown by the monitoring. If changes are required, the council will implement them.

Information provided by job applicants and employees for monitoring purposes will be used only for these purposes and will be dealt with in accordance with relevant data protection legislation.

This is a non-contractual procedure which will be reviewed from time to time.

— policy ends here —

#### **Notes**

This is an example policy that should be adjusted to reflect the procedures and policy of the council. It is important that any commitment made in the policy is applied in practice.

1. Green Book terms

The Green Book sets out practical principles that councils can adopt and acknowledges that local councils will need to select the appropriate measures to match their circumstances. The guidance covers:

- Developing and action plan to establish and monitor progress
- Recruitment and Selection Procedures
- Training
- Pay, Grading and Conditions of Service
- Dealing with Harassment

#### Guidance

Where there is text in [square brackets] this part may be updated or be deleted if not relevant. An alternative option may have been provided.

#### Important notice

This is an example of an employment policy designed for a small council adhering to statutory minimum requirements and does not constitute legal advice. As with all policies it should be consistent with your terms and conditions of employment.

This document was commissioned by the National Association of Local Councils (NALC) in 2019 for the purpose of its member councils and county associations. Every effort has been made to ensure that the contents of this document are correct at time of publication. NALC cannot accept responsibility for errors, omissions and changes to information subsequent to publication.

This document has been written by the HR Services Partnership – a company that provides HR advice and guidance to town and parish councils. Please contact them on 01403 240 205 for information about their services.



## Llanharan Community Council - Grievance policy & procedure

#### Introduction

- 1. This policy is based on the NALC template and complies with the 2015 ACAS Code of Practice (http://www.acas.org.uk/index.aspx?articleid=2174. It also takes account of the ACAS guide on discipline and grievances at work. (https://www.acas.org.uk/media/1043/Discipline-and-grievances-at-work-The-Acas-guide/pdf/DG Guide Feb 2019.pdf ). It aims to encourage and maintain good relationships between the Council and its employees by treating grievances seriously and resolving them as quickly as possible. It sets out the arrangements for employees to raise their concerns, problems or complaints about their employment with the Council. The policy will be applied fairly, consistently and in accordance with the Equality Act 2010.
- 2. Many problems can be raised and settled during the course of everyday working relationships. Employees should aim to settle most grievances informally with their line manager.

#### 3. This policy confirms:

- employees have the right to be accompanied at a grievance meeting or appeal by a companion who can be a workplace colleague, a trade union representative or a trade union official. This includes any meeting held with them to hear about, gather facts about, discuss, consider or resolve their grievance. The companion will be permitted to address the grievance/appeal meetings, to present the employee's case for his /her grievance/appeal and to confer with the employee. The companion cannot answer questions put to the employee, address the meeting against the employee's wishes or prevent the employee from explaining his/her case.
- the Council will give employees reasonable notice of the date of the grievance/appeal meetings. Employees and their companions must make all reasonable efforts to attend. If the companion is not available for the proposed date of the meeting, the employee can request a postponement and can propose an alternative date that is within five working days of the original meeting date unless it is unreasonable not to propose a later date
- any changes to specified time limits must be agreed by the employee and the Council
- an employee has the right to appeal against the decision about his/her grievance. The appeal decision is final

- information about an employee's grievance will be restricted to those involved in the grievance process. A record of the reason for the grievance, its outcome and action taken is confidential to the employee. The employee's grievance records will be held by the Council in accordance with the General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR)
- audio or video recordings of the proceedings at any stage of the grievance procedure are prohibited, unless agreed by all affected parties as a reasonable adjustment that takes account of an employee's medical condition
- if an employee who is already subject to a disciplinary process raises a grievance, the grievance will normally be heard after completion of the disciplinary procedure
- if a grievance is not upheld, no disciplinary action will be taken against an employee if he/she raised the grievance in good faith
- the Council may consider mediation at any stage of the grievance procedure where appropriate, (for example where there have been communication breakdowns or allegations of bullying or harassment). Mediation is a dispute resolution process which requires the consent of affected parties
- Employees can use all stages of the grievance procedure If the complaint is not a code of conduct complaint about a councillor. Employees can use the informal stage of the council's grievance procedure (paragraph 4) to deal with all grievance issues, including a complaint about a councillor Employees cannot use the formal stages of the council's grievance procedure for a code of conduct complaint about a councillor. If the complaint about the councillor is not resolved at the informal stage, the employee can contact the monitoring officer of [[] council] who will inform the employee whether or not the complaint can be dealt with under the code of conduct. If it does not concern the code of conduct, the employee can make a formal complaint under the council's grievance procedure (see paragraph 5)
- If the grievance is a code of conduct complaint against a councillor, the employee
  cannot proceed with it beyond the informal stage of the council's grievance
  procedure. However, whatever the complaint, the council has a duty of care to its
  employees. It must take all reasonable steps to ensure employees have a safe
  working environment, for example by undertaking risk assessments, by ensuring
  staff and councillors are properly trained and by protecting staff from bullying,
  harassment and all forms of discrimination
- If an employee considers that the grievance concerns his or her safety within the
  working environment, whether or not it also concerns a complaint against a
  councillor, the employee should raise these safety concerns with his or her line
  manager at the informal stage of the grievance procedure. The council will
  consider whether it should take further action in this matter in accordance with any
  of its employment policies (for example its health and safety policy or its dignity at
  work policy) and in accordance with the code of conduct regime

#### Informal grievance procedure

4. The Council and its employees benefit if grievances are resolved informally and as quickly as possible. As soon as a problem arises, the employee should raise it with his/her manager to see if an informal solution is possible. Both should try to resolve the matter at this stage. If the employee does not want to discuss the grievance with his/her manager because it concerns the manager, the employee should contact the Chair of the HR committee or, if appropriate, another member of the HR committee. If the employee's complaint is about a councillor, it may be appropriate to involve that councillor at the informal stage. This will require both the employee's and the councilor's consent.

#### Formal grievance procedure

- 5. If it is not possible to resolve the grievance informally and the employee's complaint is not one that should be dealt with as a code of conduct complaint (see above), the employee may submit a formal grievance. It should be submitted in writing to their line manager, or if the grievance concerns their line Manager then the Chair of the HR committee.
- 6. The HR committee will appoint a sub-committee of three members to hear the grievance. The sub-committee will appoint a Chair from one of its members. No councillor with direct involvement in the matter shall be appointed to the sub-committee.

#### Investigation

- 7. If the sub-committee decides that it is appropriate, (e.g. if the grievance is complex), it may appoint an investigator to carry out an investigation before the grievance meeting to establish the facts of the case. The investigation may include interviews (e.g. the employee submitting the grievance, other employees, councillors or members of the public).
- 8. The investigator will summarise their findings (usually within an investigation report) and present their findings to the sub-committee.

#### **Notification**

- 9. Within 10 working days of the Council receiving the employee's grievance (this may be longer if there is an investigation), the employee will normally be asked, in writing, to attend a grievance meeting. The written notification will include the following:
  - the names of its Chair and other members

- the date, time and place for the meeting. The employee will be given reasonable notice of the meeting which will normally be within 25 working days of when the Council received the grievance
- the employee's right to be accompanied by a workplace colleague, a trade union representative or a trade union official
- a copy of the Council's grievance policy
- confirmation that, if necessary, witnesses may attend (or submit witness statements signed and dated by the witness themselves) on the employee's behalf and that the employee should provide the names of his/her witnesses as soon as possible before the meeting
- confirmation that the employee will provide the Council with any supporting evidence in advance of the meeting, usually with at least two days' notice
- findings of the investigation if there has been an investigation
- an invitation for the employee to request any adjustments to be made for the hearing (for example where a person has a health condition).

#### The grievance meeting

- 10. At the grievance meeting:
  - the Chair will introduce the members of the sub-committee to the employee
  - the employee (or companion) will set out the grievance and present the evidence
  - the Chair will ask the employee questions about the information presented and will want to understand what action does he/she wants the Council to take
  - any member of the sub-committee and the employee (or the companion) may question any witness
  - the employee (or companion) will have the opportunity to sum up the case
  - a grievance meeting may be adjourned to allow matters that were raised during the meeting to be investigated by the sub-committee.
- 11. The Chair will provide the employee with the sub-committee's decision, in writing, usually within five working days of the meeting. The letter will notify the employee of the action, if any, that the Council will take and of the employee's right to appeal.

#### The appeal

- 12. If an employee decides that his/her grievance has not been satisfactorily resolved by the sub-committee, he/she may submit a written appeal to the HR committee. An appeal must be received by the Council within five working days of the employee receiving the sub-committee's decision and must specify the grounds of appeal.
- 13. Appeals may be raised on a number of grounds, e.g.:

- a failure by the Council to follow its grievance policy
- the decision was not supported by the evidence
- the action proposed by the sub-committee was inadequate/inappropriate
- new evidence has come to light since the grievance meeting.
- 14. The appeal will be heard by a panel of three members of the HR committee who have not previously been involved in the case. There may be insufficient members of the HR committee who have not previously been involved. If so, the appeal panel will be a committee of three Council members who may include members of the HR committee. The appeal panel will appoint a Chair from one of its members.
- 15. The employee will be notified, in writing, usually within 10 working days of receipt of the appeal of the time, date and place of the appeal meeting. The meeting will normally take place within 25 working days of the Council's receipt of the appeal. The employee will be advised that he/she may be accompanied by a workplace colleague, a trade union representative or a trade union official.
- 16. At the appeal meeting, the Chair will:
  - introduce the panel members to the employee
  - explain the purpose of the meeting, which is to hear the employee's reasons for appealing against the decision of the HR sub-committee
  - explain the action that the appeal panel may take.
- 17. The employee (or companion) will be asked to explain the grounds of appeal.
- 18. The Chair will inform the employee that he/she will receive the decision and the panel's reasons, in writing, within five working days of the appeal meeting.
- 19. The appeal panel may decide to uphold the decision of the HR committee or substitute its own decision.
- 20. The decision of the appeal panel is final.

## Llanharan Community Council – Sickness and Absence Policy

What to do if you are unwell	2
Return-to-work meeting	2
Medical appointments	3
Statutory Sick Pay	3
Council's Sick Pay (occupational sick pay)	3
Medical advice	4
Persistent short-term absence	4
Long-term absence	5
Absence as a result of disability	7
Data protection	7
Sickness Self certification form	8
Return to work form	9

#### What to do if you are unwell

If you are away from work because of sickness you must:

- Telephone your line manager before your contractual (or normal start time for work) on the first day of absence providing details and how long you expect to be off. If you are unable to call personally, someone else may call for you. It is your responsibility to ensure the line manager is notified. If you have attempted to call unsuccessfully more than twice and have attempted to call your line managers mobile phone at least twice then you may leave a voice or text message as a last resort. Your line manager or another appropriate member of staff may then call you back to discuss your absence. You must then telephone again each day (unless otherwise agreed with the line manager).
- If you are away for seven days or less (including weekends and other non-working days), you must complete a self-certification form (provided at the end of this document) and provide it to the line manager when you are back at work.
- If you are away for more than seven days (including weekends and other non-working days), you must send in a 'fit to work' statement from your doctor and continue to do so as each new certificate is issued to you. This certificate gives details as to whether you are too ill to work or whether you are well enough to work with suitable support from the Council. This gives you and the Council the opportunity to discuss suitable arrangements which will support your return to work. The form also gives more space for the doctor to provide information about your condition and helpful tick boxes to suggest common ways to help you return to work. The 'fit to work' statements must cover the entire period of your absence. There must not be any gaps in dates. If the employee is unable to obtain a doctors appointment on the required date then the doctor can back date the form for the required period should they feel it appropriate.
- All sickness or injury absence will be entered on your employment record and will be monitored.

#### **Return-to-work meetings**

On the first day back at work after a period of sickness absence your manager or the Clerk may want to meet informally. If this is not possible on your first day back, the meeting may take place later. The return-to-work meeting should take place in a private place, and all discussions should be private and confidential. The meeting would normally include

- a welcome back to work:
- outline the purpose of the return-to-work meeting; which is to manage and monitor absence and attendance to identify any problem areas and offer support where appropriate;

- a discussion about the reasons for absence, in a supportive way and to understand whether the council can take any steps to help the employee's attendance;
- · explain that the absence will be recorded;
- establish if medical advice has been sought (if appropriate);
- ensure the self-certification form has been completed or a fit note from the doctor has been provided;
- a discussion on absence over the last 52 weeks, the impact on pay and any next steps; and
- a handover of work where appropriate.
- Completion of the 'return to work' form included at the end of this document.

#### **Medical appointments**

The council recognises that employees will, from time to time, need to attend medical appointments. Please try to arrange medical appointments in your own time or, if this is not possible, at times that will cause the minimum amount of absence from work or inconvenience to the council. The council will allow reasonable time off work without pay for such appointments.

#### **Statutory Sick Pay**

If you are ill and unable to attend work, you may be entitled to Statutory Sick Pay (SSP). SSP is currently paid after 4 Qualifying Days absence from work. The Qualifying Days are your normal working days that are in your contract. Tax and National Insurance will be deducted from SSP and if you earn below the lower earnings limit, you will not qualify for SSP.

#### Council's Sick Pay (Occupational Sick Pay)

It is the Council's policy to pay you your normal basic rate of pay exclusive of overtime/allowances during periods of sickness absence as follows:

during 1st year of service	one month's full pay and		
	(after completing 4 months' service) 2 months' half pay		
during 2nd year of service	2 months' full pay and 2 months' half pay		
during 3rd year of service	4 months' full pay and 4 months' half pay		

during 4th & 5th - 5 months' full pay and 5 months' year of service half pay

after 5 years' service 6 months' full pay and 6 months' half pay

This occupational sick pay will be for absences due to sickness calculated over the previous 52 weeks and will include your entitlement to SSP.

Payment is, however, conditional upon you complying with the council's procedure for notifying your manager of the absence, attending an interview with your manager on request to discuss the absence, and completing a self-certification form on return to work or providing a fit-note when requested. We may also ask you to attend an interview/examination with a nominated doctor at the request of the Council.

We may not pay you occupational sick pay where:

- you have failed to comply with the Council's sickness absence notification and evidence requirements;
- you unreasonably refuse to attend a sickness absence meeting with the Council on request;
- you are unable to work because you hurt yourself in dangerous sports / activities or any other occupation you have;
- you have misled the council about your fitness to work;
- you have resigned; or
- where disciplinary proceedings are pending against you.

#### **Medical advice**

The Council may want to obtain advice on your fitness for work from occupational health advisers or medical practitioners. Examples of when the Council might refer to occupational health or a medical practitioner include the following:

- to seek a medical report on your illness or injury;
- to establish when you might be able to return to work;
- to understand when you are likely to be fully fit to resume your normal duties;

- to understand what alternative duties you might be fit to undertake if you are unfit to resume your normal duties;
- to understand when you are likely to be fit to undertake any alternative duties;
- to ask for guidance on your condition, for example if there is a possibility that you are disabled or ambiguity as to the exact nature of the condition;
- to ask what reasonable adjustments could be made to working conditions or premises to facilitate a return to work;
- to understand the likely recurrence of the illness or injury once you have returned to work; and
- to discuss any adjustments that could be made to accommodate your disability, if you are disabled.

The Council will pay the cost of the report and you will have the right to see it. The Council will also be provided with a copy of the report and once we have seen it, we will want to meet you to discuss the findings and consider options available to you.

If you choose not to consent to an Occupational Health referral, any decisions in relation to your employment may be made without the benefit of access to medical reports.

#### Persistent short-term absence

Persistent short-term absence is where an employee is frequently absent from work for relatively short periods due to sickness. We understand most employees will have some short-term sickness absence from time to time. However, if you are frequently and persistently absent from work, this can damage efficiency and productivity, and place an additional burden of work on your colleagues and councillors.

Therefore, it is essential that frequent absence is dealt with promptly and consistently and in some circumstances, the Council may begin a capability or disciplinary procedure as part of the absence management process. If we do so, we will meet with you to set attendance targets. Following a review meeting we may issue a formal warning if those targets are not met. You will be given written notice in advance of any formal meeting and you can be accompanied by a work colleague or trade union representative. You may appeal against a formal warning. If your absence remains unacceptable after a second formal warning, the council may bring your employment to an end following consultation with you.

If frequent absence is due to an underlying long-term health condition then we will also request, with consent, a medical report either from an Occupational Health Physician or your G.P. or consultant to establish further information about your health and how the council can support your attendance.

When considering the reasons for absence, and deciding on whether a formal meeting is appropriate, the council will not consider any pregnancy related absence. The council will

also make adjustments where absences are related to a disability by allowing a higher level of absence before considering whether disciplinary action is appropriate.

The council will consider any alternative employment options before making any decision about ending employment. You will have the right to be accompanied by a work colleague or trade union representative at formal meetings and a right of appeal against a formal warning or dismissal sanction. The monitoring of absence operates on a rolling 52-week period.

Where it appears that there is no acceptable reason for an absence or if you have not followed the correct absence notification procedure, the matter should be treated as a conduct issue and dealt with under the disciplinary procedure.

#### Long-term absence

As a guide, long term absence is any absence which lasts or is expected to last over 4 weeks. In all cases of long-term absence, it is essential for the Council to maintain contact with you. In cases where the return date is less certain this will take the form of consultation and will include:

- Discussions at the start of the absence and periodically throughout
- Obtaining better information on your health and likely prognosis, ideally through an Occupational Health Physician
- Where appropriate alerting you to the fact that your absence is becoming a problem, and
- Allowing you the opportunity to state your opinion of your condition and giving consideration to that opinion

Where ill-health means that you are unlikely to return to work for a long period of time, the council may need to consider bringing your employment to an end. In these circumstances, the council will:

- Review your absence record to assess whether or not it is sufficient to justify dismissal
- Consult with you
- Obtain up-to-date medical advice
- Advise you in writing as soon as it is established that termination of employment has become a possibility
- Discuss whether you may be able to access benefits from the Local Government Pension Scheme (where appropriate)]
- Meet with you to discuss the options and consider your views on continuing employment before any decisions are made, allowing you to be accompanied by a work colleague or trade union representative

- Review if there are any alternative jobs that you could do prior to taking any decision on whether or not to dismiss
- Allow a right of appeal against any decision to dismiss you on grounds of long-term ill health
- Following this meeting, inform you of the final decision

#### Absence as a result of disability

Where you experience sickness absence as a result of a disability it will be treated in line with the provisions contained within the Equality Act 2010 (formerly as part of the Disability Discrimination Act 1995). This will include considering whether any reasonable adjustments can be made.

#### Third party liability

If any absence is as a result of an injury or accident or incident where the employee claims loss of earnings from a 3<sup>rd</sup> party, that any sick pay paid to an employee should be reimbursed to the employer following any successful claim.

#### **Data protection**

The Council will treat personal data collected during the absence management process in accordance with its data protection policy on processing special categories of personal data. Information about how your data is used and the basis for processing your data will be provided in our employee privacy notice. When relying on legitimate interests as the legal ground for processing your data, you can object to the processing.

This is a non-contractual procedure which will be reviewed from time to time.

# **Self-Certification Form**

This form should be completed by employees and managers, and a return to work discussion held following all periods of sickness absence, as soon as possible following the employee's return to work. For periods of sickness absence of 8 days or longer, a Fit Note must also be obtained.

e employee.		
Last Date of Sickness		
AM/PM		
Working Hours/days Lost		
d any medical treatment sought.		
rcident?  If YES, this must be recorded and an investigation must take place.		
Details to be reported to the HR Committee		
return to work interview form completed & signed?		
be kept together.		
Date		
Date		



## **LLANHARAN COMMUNITY COUNCIL**

## **RETURN TO WORK INTERVIEW FORM**

EMPLOYEE'S NAME		PAYROLL NO	JOB ROLE
FIRST DATE OF ABSENCE	LAST DATE OF ABSENCE	RETURN TO WORK DATE	NO OF DAYS ABSENT
	<u> </u>		
WAS CORRECT REPO (Action/Discussion if		FOLLOWED:	res / NO
REASON FOR ABSEN	CE:		
RESULT OF INDUSTR	IAL INJURY? YES /	NO (Record detail	s separately if so)
ARE THERE ANY WO	RK-RELATED FACTOI	RS? YES/NO (Re	ecord details separately
DID EMPLOYEE VISIT	GP/HOSPITAL, ETC	? YES / NO	
HAS MEDICAL CERTII	FICATE (SELF CERT, FIT NO	оте, етс <b>) BEEN REC</b>	EIVED? YES / NO
IS ILLNESS LIKELY TO	CAUSE FURTHER AF	BSENCES?: YES	/ NO
COMMENTS:			•••••
ABSENCES IN THE PR	EVIOUS 12 MONTH	S:	
NO OF ABSENCES		NO OF DAYS	

ARE ILLNESSES RELATED/ONGOING? YES / NO	
COMMENTS:	•••
ARE THERE ANY PATTERNS? YES / NO	
COMMENTS:	•••
RECORD OF ANY OTHER DISCUSSIONS WHICH TOOK PLACE (Impact on service provision, colleagues, etc):	:e
	••
	••
	••
	••
ANY FURTHER ACTIONS/OUTCOMES AGREED (Sickness Absence Monitoring, Reviews, Referral to Occupation Health, Mentoring, Phased Return, Light Duties, Further Meetings, etc)	,
	••
	••
	••
	••
ACTION/NOTES TO BE SIGNED AND AGREED BY EMPLOYEE & EMPLOYER	
Signed: (Employee)	
Signed: (Employer)	